
Special Meeting 
Monday November 18, 2024  

5:00pm 
Chowan County Public Safety Center 

305 West Freemason St. 
Edenton, NC 

Present: Chairman Bob Kirby, Commissioners, Ellis Lawrence, Ron Cummings,   Chris Evans 
and Alex Kehayes. 
 
Commissioners Larry McLaughlin and Tray Taylor were absent. 
 
Staff present County Manager Kevin Howard, Finance Officer Cathy Smith, County Attorney 
Lauren Arizaga-Womble (by phone) and Board Clerk Susanne Stallings . 

 
Closed Session 
Commissioner Evans moved to go into closed session in accordance with NCGS 143-318-11 (a) 
(3) attorney client. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (5-0). 
 
The minutes of the closed session are sealed. 
 
Commissioner Kehayes moved to come out of closed session. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, 
the motion passed unanimously (5-0). 
 
Adjourn 
Commissioner Evans moved to adjourn. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed 
unanimously (5-0). 
 
 
 
_______________________________________  ______________________________ 
Bob Kirby, Chairman      Susanne Stallings   
        Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chowan County Board of Commissioners 
Regular Meeting 

Monday, November 18, 2024 
Chowan County Public Safety Center 

305 West Freemason Street 
6:00pm 

 
 
This meeting was recorded. A copy of the recording is in the meeting file labeled November 18, 
2024. 
 
Present: Chairman Bob Kirby, Commissioners, Ellis Lawrence, Chris Evans, Tray Taylor, Ron 
Cummings, and Alex Kehayes. 
 
Absent: Commissioner Larry McLaughlin. 
 
Staff present County Manager Kevin Howard and Board Clerk Susanne Stallings and Finance 
Officer Cathy Smith. 

 
Regular Meeting 
Chair Kirby called the regular meeting to order and led in the pledge.   
 
Commissioner Cummings then offered the invocation. 
 
Approval of Agenda  
Board Clerk Susanne Stallings noted the request for the addition of item 8a to the agenda.  A 
change order for the Courthouse renovation project.  
 
Commissioner Kehayes moved to approve the agenda as amended.  
 
Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Public Comment 
Chair Kirby opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was none. 
  
Consent Agenda  
All items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and may be enacted by one 
motion. If a County Commissioner requests discussion on an item, the item will be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately. 

 
a. Minutes  

The Board will review and consider approval of the October 30, 2024 Joint 
Planning Board meeting and the November 4, 2023 Regular and Special Meetings  

 



Commissioner Cummings moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Chair Kirby asked 
for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
FY 2023-24 Audit Report 
Austin Eubanks, the County’s Auditor with Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams and Co. formally 
presented the FY 2023-24 Independent Audit with financial statements and answer questions 
from the Board. 
 

 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 
 



 

 



 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 
A full copy of the PowerPoint presentation as well as the audited financial statements are in the 
meeting file labeled November 18, 2024. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence asked about the deficiencies reported in the audit. 
 



Mr. Eubanks stated that most counties have these types of findings. He stated that the turn over is 
a concern however there is little cost associated with these issues. 
 
Chair Kirby asked if a 60% fund balance is excessive. 
 
Mr. Eubanks stated that Counties have to have funds available for hurricane response. He stated 
it is good to have these funds available for emergency situations. 
 
Ms. Smith noted that even though the audit does not consider this, some of these funds have been 
committed in the budget such as COA capital outlay.  
 
Chair Kirby stated he felt this information is important to relay to the public in the news 
coverage of the meetings.  He stated that some residents have been critical of the County’s 
reserves. He stated that one big hurricane would wipe out these funds and it has shown in other 
areas it is often several days before FEMA responds with funding. 
 
Chair Kirby thanked staff for the good work and an outstanding audit. He commended the 
prompt work of the audit firm for getting the report completed in a timely manner. 
 
Annual Report 
Co-Director Shannon Ray provided the Board with the annual reports from Senior Center and 
Recreation Departments. A copy of the presentation is in the meeting file labeled November 18, 
2024. 
 
NCACC – Essentials of County Government - Commissioner Elect Shaffer 
Ms. Stallings noted that it is recommended that the Board authorize the Clerk to register 
Commissioner Elect Tony Shaffer for training and accommodations so that he may attend the 
NCACC 2025 Essentials of County Government (also known as new Commissioner Training) 
which will be held in New Bern in January 2025. 
 
Commissioner Taylor moved to authorize the expenditure. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the 
motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Financial Items 
Finance Officer Cathy Smith presented the following: 

 
FY25 Budget Amendments 
BA2025-024 
 



 

*Preservation/Automation 786.68                     
*Dept Supplies - Auto/Pres 262.23                   
*Contr Svcs - Automation/Pres 262.23                   
*C/O - Auto / Pres 262.22                   

*KIDS & COPS 50.00                       
*KIDS & COPS Expense 50.00                     

*Donations - Chowan 1,046.30                 
*Donations - Perquimans 256.55                     
*Donations - Other 1,287.49                 
*Donation - Expense 2,590.34               
*Adoption - Chowan 775.00                     
*Adoption - Gates 125.00                     
*Adoption - Perquimans 470.45                     
*Adoption - Other 972.45                     
*Contr Svcs - Spay/Neuter 2,342.90               

*SHIIP Grant (Senior Health Insurance 
Information Program) 50.00                       
*SHIIP Grant (Senior Health Insurance 
Information Program) 50.00                     
*AG Program Fees Discretionary 2,216.16                 
*Ag Program Fees Discretionary 2,216.16               
*4-H Fees Discretionary 5,562.00                 
*4-H Fees Discretionary 5,562.00               
*ECA Discretionary (Extension Community 
Association) 20.00                       
*ECA Discretionary (Extension Community 
Association) 20.00                     

*Recreation Donations 3,150.00                 
*Donations - Dept Supplies 3,150.00               
*Recreation Special Events 900.00                     
*Recreation Special Events 900.00                   

*Reg Fees - Trips 2,057.00                 
*TRIPS - Senior Citizens 2,057.00               
*Registration Fees Activities 335.00                     
*Activities - Dept. Supplies 335.00                   
*Silver Sneakers 867.00                     
*Silver & Fit 168.00                     
*Renew Active 609.00                     
*Healthways 1,644.00               
*Donations - Fitness 189.00                     
*Donations - Fitness 189.00                   

*DSS Special Events 687.00                     
*DSS Special Events 687.00                   

Balanced 22,580.08               22,580.08             

Total Discretionary Income Received FYE 2025 120,372.68            

Justification:

Register of Deeds
11-3418-415-00
11-4180-298-00
11-4180-440-00
11-4180-511-00

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

11-3431-243-00
11-4317-443-00

Sheriff's Office

Animal Shelter
11-3438-894-00
11-3438-894-02
11-3438-894-03
11-4381-600-00
11-3438-895-00
11-3438-895-01
11-3438-895-02
11-3438-895-03
11-4381-441-00

11-3495-370-00
11-4953-440-00

Cooperative Ext:

11-3495-363-00

11-4950-600-00

11-3495-380-00

11-4953-450-00

11-3495-378-00
11-4953-448-00

Recreation
11-3612-487-00
11-6130-299-01

Senior Center

11-3612-504-00
11-6132-453-00

11-3616-535-05
11-3616-535-06
11-4268-352-02
11-3616-535-01
11-4268-352-01

11-3616-533-00
11-4268-312-00
11-3616-533-01
11-4268-299-01
11-3616-535-04

12-3531-230-14
12-5310-450-00

To amend the 2025 budget to include Discretionary income for October 2024.

DSS



 
BA2025-025 

 
 
Commissioner Lawrence moved to approve the budget amendments as presented. Chair Kirby 
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Update on JA Holmes Highschool Project Expenses 
A copy of the report is in the meeting file labeled November 18, 2024. 
Additionally, Ms. Smith provided the Board with an updated report on the change orders 
approved to date. This is also in the November 18, 2024 meeting file. 
 

External Board/Committee Report 
Chair Kirby noted that the ECP Board is meeting and discussing several exciting projects that are 
in the works. He stated that more information will be forth coming. 
 
Change Order for Courthouse Renovation Project 
Mr. Howard noted that a change order for the project is coming soon. He stated this is for the 
Clerk of Court office area. He stated that he is requesting permission to approve the change 
order.  He requested approval for the change to be up to $75,000 however he hoped it would not 
be over $50,000. 
 
Commissioner Evans moved to grant the manager authority to approve the project change order 
when it is presented not to exceed $75,000 to keep the project on schedule. 
 
Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Manager’s Report 
County Manager Kevin Howard provided the following updates: 
 

Fund Balance Appropriated 32,838.00               

PARTF Grant - Bennett's Millpond - Rev 131,351.00            
PARTF Grant - Bennett's Millpond - Exp 164,189.00          

Balanced 164,189.00            164,189.00          

Justification:

11-3390-990-00

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

Fund Balance

11-3612-496-01
11-6132-441-01

Recreation

To amend the budget for Recreation to include the PARTF - Accessible 
Parks Project grant for Bennett's Millpond.  Grant application (and 

local match) was approved by BOCC on 03/04/24.



- The high school construction project is on schedule, a change order should be coming 
to the Commissioners soon for technology equipment for the auditorium. 

 
Timely and Important Matters 
Ms. Smith noted that Board members are asked to see her after the  meeting to sign the audit 
response letter. 
 
Adjourn 
Being no further business, Commissioner Evans moved that the meeting be adjourned. Chair 
Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
 

 

 
_______________________________________  ______________________________ 
Bob Kirby, Chairman      Susanne Stallings, Clerk 

 

 


